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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
To the Members of M/S RIPLEY & CO STEVEDORING & HANDLING PVT LTD

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement of Ripley & Co Stevedoring
& Handling Pvt Ltd (“the Company”), which comprise the Consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March,
2023, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss and Consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023, its
profit and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements section of our
report. We are Independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules there under,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code
of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it
is an unlisted company.

Information other than the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements and auditors’ report thereon.
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
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Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements , our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements , management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Consolidated Ind AS financial statements .

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements , whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than Eg\r
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one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, international omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.
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2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

)

d)

e)

g)

h)

ii.

iii.

iv.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards (AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in ‘Annexure B’.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16), In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid
down under section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other
details under section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material mis-statement.

V. No dividend have been declared or paid during the year by the company.

For and on behalf of

Roy & Sengupta Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 324171E

Partner
Membership No: 205836
UDIN: 23205836BGTMVK4025
Place: Kolkata
Date: 25th September, 2023
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

With reference to the Annexure-A referred to in paragraph 1 in Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
of the Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Ripley & Co Stevedoring & Handling Pvt Ltd Company
on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 3 1st March, 2023, we report that:

(h (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) Since, the Company do not have any intangible assets, so this clause is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of property, plant and equipment in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program,
certain fixed assets were physically verified during the year. No material discrepancies were observed on such
verification.

(©) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, this clause relating to
title deeds of the immovable properties is not applicable, as the Company do not have any intangible properties.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during
the year.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, No proceedings have
been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made there under as such no disclosures have been
made.

(10
(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. According to the information and
explanations given to us and as examined by us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in aggregate from
Banks/financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly returns / statements filed with
such Banks/ financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

(111)

(a) During the year the company has made investments in and provided guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made, guarantees
provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the
nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prima facie prejudicial to the company’s interest;

(c) There is no stipulation of schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest and therefore
we are unable to comment on the regularity of repayment of principal & payment of interest.

(d) Since the term of arrangement does not stipulate any repayment schedule we are unable to comment
whether the amount is overdue or not.

(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same
parties except following:

Nil

(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(IV)  In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, in respect of loans given,
investments made, guarantees and security given, the Company has complied with the provisions of
sections 185 and section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(V) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted
any deposits from the public within the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under.

(VI)  The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act and the rules framed there under.

(VID)
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, goods and
services tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues have been
generally regularly deposited during the year by the company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, goods and services tax, duty of
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customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears, as at March 31,
2022, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues which have not been
deposited by the Company on account of disputes. except following :  (In Lakhs)

Name | SRl Period to Forum where | Remarks. i
Nature of | Amount i e Hek
of the e whichthe | Dispute is Any
Statute : e amount relates | pending :
Goods & Service Tax| Interest on GST 271.26 FY 2017-18 Joint Commissioner
Act, 2017 And of GST
FY 2018-19

(VIII) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company did not have any transactions that were
not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(IX)
(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of

interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
Government or any Government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the loans were applied
for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.
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(X)
(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) during the year.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

(XD
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud on the Company by its
officers and employees or fraud by the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(b) No Report Under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has not been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) No whistle-blower complaints were received by the company during the year for consideration by the
Auditors.

(XII) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company is not a Nidhi
Company as prescribed under section 406 of the Act, hence, Clauses (xii)(a) and (xii) (c) are not applicable to the
Company.

(XIII) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable, the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(XIV) The company does not require to have an internal audit system due to the size and nature of its business, so
Clauses (xiv) (a) to (xiv) (b) are not applicable to the Company..

(XV)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.

(XVI) According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, accordingly, Clauses (xvi)(b) to (xvi)(d)
are not applicable.
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(XVII) The company has not incurred any cash losses during this financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(XVIII) There has not been any change in the statutory auditors during the year.

(XIX) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans, we, the auditor are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report and that the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

(XX) According to the information and explanations given to ‘us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act are
applicable to the Company. The Company has made the required contributions during the year and there are no
unspent amounts which are required to be transferred either to a Fund or to a Special Account as per the provisions
of section 135 of the act read with schedule VII. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and clause 3(xx)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company

(XXI) There have not been any qualifications or adverse remarks by us in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order
(CARO) reports of the companies included in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements .

For and on behalf of

Roy & Sengupta Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 324171E
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SUBHAJIT
Partner

Membership No: 205836

UDIN: 23205836BGTMVK4025

Place: Kolkata

Date: 25" September, 2023
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF M/S RIPLEY & CO STEVEDORING & HANDLING PVTLTD (“THE

COMPANY”)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.
(Referred to in paragraph 1(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ripley & Co Stevedoring &
Handling Pvt Ltd  (“The Company") as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITOR’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based onour audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For and on behalf of

Roy & Sengupta Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 324171E

SUBHAJIT ROY

Partner
Membership No: 205836
UDIN: 23205836BGTMVK4025
Place: Kolkata
Date: 25" September, 2023




Kipley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as on 31 March 2023
{Amounts in 1upees lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

L ASSETS

Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
{b} Right-of-use asset
(c) Capital work-in-progress
(<1} Investment 1n equity accounted mvestees
(e) Financial assets

(i) Investment

(i) Loans

(ii1) Other financial assets
(f)Deferred tax assets (net)
(g) Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
(a) Inventories
{b) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables
(11) Cash and cash equivalents
(111) Bank balances other than (1i) above
1w Loans
(v) Other financial assets
i) Current tax assets (net)
(d Other current assets

Toiai current assets
TOTAL ASSETS
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

L auity

(a} Equity share capital

{hy Other equity

{©} Instruments entrely in the nature of equity
#quity attributable to owner of the company
Non-Controlling interest

Tctal equity

Mon-current liabilities
ta) Financial habilities

(1) Berrowings

(i1) Lease liabilities
{b) Provisions
() Other non-current liabilities
(d) Deferred tax habilities (Net)
Total non-current liabilities

Liabilities

Current liabilities

(a) Financial habilities
(1) Borrowings
(1) Lease liabilities
() Trade payables

a) total owtstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iv) Other financial llabihties
(b} Other current habilities
(c) Provisions
(d} Income tax liabilities (net)
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Sigmificant accounting poiicies
Notes to the financial statements

Tt.e notes referred to above form an mtegral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Roy & Sengupta Associates
Chartered Accountants

Subhajit Roy
Partner
Membership No - 205836
UDIN :23205836BGTMVKA4025
Place’ Kolkata

Dated : 25th September, 2023

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

2 28,465.30 26,043.54
3 - 14,052.54
3 10.18 10.18
4 741.61 3,013.14
5 1,169.15 1,33320
6 21,23843 9,413 38
7 2,157.74 1,621.17
36 "
8 620.84 -
54,403.24 55,487.15
9 7.071.94 7.152.32
10 13,601.75 2696868
11 4,711.73 5,878.43
12 15,940.64 12,418.22
13 4,299.44 28.18
14 379587 1,421.41
36 23,471.61 18,101.06
B 3,050.72 6,637.39
75,943.20 78,605.69
1,30,346.45 1,34,092.84
16 50.00 50.00
17 73,004.46 63,066.06
73,054.46 63,116.06
(165.22) (304.95)
72,889.24 62,811.11
18 6,271.78 5,742.88
19 - 5,659.00
20 694.39 47295
21 756.47 -
36 - 508.44
7,722.64 12,383.28
22 10,538.71 18,300.56
23 - 1,523.72
24
47.66 184.01
12,962.55 16,895 94
25 3,078.34 1,81823
26 1,777.54 4,042.38
27 36.05 18.95
36 21,263.71 16,114 65
49,734.57 58,898.45
57,45721 71,281.73
1.30,346.45 1,34,092.84
1
1-51

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Ripley & \p. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited

asinant Kumar Jaiy
Drrector
DIN 00043222

Place: Kolkata
Dated : 25th September, 2023

N o

Prabal Mukherjee
Director
DIN . 015259069

Place: Kolkata
Dated : 25th September, 2023



Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amounts in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Note For year ended For year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue
Revenue from operations 28 1,55,030.34 1,39,733.51
Other income (net) 29 423190 1,949.25
Total revenue 1,59,262.25 1,41,682.77
Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 30 57,363.62 54,109.17
Changes in mnventories of fimished goods and work-in-progress 31 80.39 6,493.75
Employee benefits expenses 32 7,737.51 6,764.88
Finance costs 33 2,754.72 1,101.08
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 34 5,007.75 3,000.86
Other expenses 35 67,704.82 53,491.71
Total expenses 1,40,648.80 1.24,961.46
Share of profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax (3,437.75) (284.55)
Profit before tax 15,175.70 16,436.76
Tax expense: 36 .
Current tax 5,210.78 432345
Tax 1n respect of earlier years - -
Deferred tax (478.44) (276.83)
IX. Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing operations
Profit for the vear 10,443.36 12,390.14
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability / (asset) (119.23) 2721
Income tax on remeasurements of defined benefit liability / (asset) 30.01 (6.85)
(ii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on foreign operation (276.08) 466.49

(365.30) 486.86
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (365.30) 486.86
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,078.06 12,877.00
Profit attributable to :
Owners of the company 10,303.71 12,60791
Non-Controlling Interests 139.65 (217.77)
Profit for the year 10,443.36 12,390.14
Other comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company (365.30) 486.86
Non-Controlling interest - -
Other comprehensive income for the year (36530) 486.86
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company 9,938.41 13,094 .77
Non-Controlling interest 139.65 (217.77)
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,078.06 12,877.00
Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10 each)
Basic earnings per share 37 2,060.74 2,521.58
Diluted earmings per share 2,060.74 2,521.58
Significant accounting policies 1
Notes to the financial statements 1-51
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Roy & Sengupta Associates For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limiied
FRN : 324171E

W "

Subhajit Roy Prashant Kumar Faiswal Prabal Mukherjee
Partner Director Director
Membership No. : 205836 DIN : 00045322 DIN : 05259069

UDIN :23205836BGTMVK4025
Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata
Dated : 25th September, 2023 Dated : 25th September, 2023 Dated : 25th September, 2023



Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.
Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amounts in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit before extraordinary items and tax 15,175.70 12,877.00
Adjustments for:
Interest received (2,119.62) (1,623.39)
Gain/(loss) on sale of fixed assets (0.30) (1.93)]
Provision for doubtful debts/(written back) 495.10 42027
Interest paid 2,754.72 1,101.08
Depreciation and amortisation 5,007.75 3,000.86
Corporate Guarantee Commission (182.33) -
Unwinding of Interest on deferred Guarantee Commission 90.06 =
Loss on sale of investment in subsidiaries 231.70
Share of profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax 3.437.75 284.55
Movement of FCTR and NCI {276.00)
9.438.81 3,181.45
Operating profit before working capital changes 24,614.51 16,058.45
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) / Decrease in other non-current financial loans (11,825.05) (2,992.38)
(Increase) / Decrease in other non-current financial assets (536.56) (1,179.09)
(Increase) / Decrease in other non-current assets (620.84) -
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories 80.39 6,493.75
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables 12,725.12 (7,242.79)
(Increase) / Decrease in current financial loans (4,271.26) (14.59)
(Increase) / Decrease in other current financial assets (2,824.13) 1,676.89
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets 3,586.67 (4,409.89)
Increase / (Decrease) in non-current provisions 13222 TL.70
Increase / (Decrease) in current borrowings {7,761.85) 15,621.46
Increase / (Decrease) in other non-current liabilities - -
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (3,343.57) 4,074.55
Increase / (Decrease) in other current financial liabilities (5,914.17) (760.13)
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 1,816.26 1,868.88
Increase / (Decrease) in current provisions 17.10 3.29
(18,739.69) 13.211.66
Cash generated from operations 5,874.81 29,270.11
Net income tax (paid) (5,432.27) (3,508.36)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities 442.54 25,761.75
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and capital work-in- (17,924.81) (11,209.88)
progress
Sale proceeds of property, plant and equipment 6.20 5.63
Bank deposits placed / matured during the year (3.522.42) (7,841.98)
Investment in group companies (54.18) &
Sale proceeds on sale of investment in subsidiaries 43.78
Interest received 2,119.62 230.83
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (19,331.82) (18,815.41)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Long-term borrowings (repaid) during the year 19,984.78 4,803.56
Interest paid (2,025.99) (575.90)
Lease liabilities -
Payment of principal - (6,877.86)
Payment of interest - (249.92)
Net cash flow (used in) financing activities 17,958.79 (2,900.12)
Net (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (930.49) 4,046,22
Effect of exch diffe on of foreign currency Cash and cash . ~
equivalents
Change on account of sale of subsidiaries (236.22)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,878.43 1,832.22
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4.711.73 5,878.45
Notes to cash flow statement
(i) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect method set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 on Statement of Cash Flows
(i1) Prior year comparatives have been reclassified to conform with current year’s presentation, where applicable
(ii1) For the purpose of cash flow, Cash and cash equivalents comprise :
Cash on hand 2631 82.53
Bills of exchange - 5.47
Balances with bank
- Current accounts 1,011.41 2,633.25
- Fixed deposits 3,674.00 3,157.18
Cheques in hand - =
4,711.73 5,878.43

See accompanying notes forming integral part of these standalone financial statements 1-43

As per our report attached of even date

For Roy & Sengupta Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 171E

Subhajit Roy

Partner

Membership No. : 205836
UDIN :23205836BGTMVK4025

Place: Kolkata
Dated : 25th September, 2023

For and on behalf of the board of directors of’
Ripley,& Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.

.‘ Vg \sussdhugd

Prabal Mukherjee

Director Director
DIN : 00045322 DIN : 05259069
Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata

Dated : 25th September, 2023 Dated : 25th September, 2023



Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amounts in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

(a) Equity share capital

(b)

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount

Balance at the beginming of the reporting year 5.00,000 50,00 5,00,000 50.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - - = 3

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 5.00,000 50.00 5,00,000 50.00
Changes in cquity share capital during the vear - - 2 =

Balance at the end of the reporting vear 5,00,000 50.00 5,00,000 50.00
Other equity

Reserves and Surplus Other equity Total attributable to Attributable to Non-

Particul i ing 1 T
articulars Retained Earnings F‘omgr‘l CUrTEnCy | oo e prerim O(her‘ reserves from owners of the Controlling interests ‘otal
translation reserve Joint Venture company

Balance at 01 April 2021 46,285.56 0.29 3.685.44 - 49,971.29 (87.18) 49.884.11
Changes in accounting policies or prior period errors - - . - - - -
Restated balance as at 01 April 2021 46,285.56 0.29 3,685.44 - 49,971.29 (87.18) 49.884.11
Add/(Less):
Profit for the year 12.607.91 - - - 12,607.91 (217.77) 12,390.14
Other comprehensive income (net of tax)

- Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations 20.36 - - - 20.36 - 20.36

- Exchange differences arising on foreign operation - 466.49 - - 466.49 - 466.49
Total comprehensive income 12,628.27 466.49 - - 13,094.77 (217.71 12.877.00
Transfers during the vear - - - - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2022 58.913.84 466.79 3.685.44 - 43,066.06 (304.95) 62,761.11
Balance at 01 April 2022 58.913.84 466.79 3,685.44 - 63.066.06 (304.95) 62,761.11
Changes in accounting policies or prior period crrors - - - - - =
Restated balance as at 01 April 2022 58.913.84 466.79 3.685.44 - 63,066.06 (304.95) 62,761.11
Add/(Less):
Profit for the year 10,303.71 - - - 10.303.71 139.65 10,443.36
NCI on investment in step down subsidiary - - - - - 0.07 0.07
Other comprehensive mcome (net of tax)

- Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations (89.22) - - - (89.22) - (89.22)

- Exchange differences ansing on foreign operation - (276.08) - - (276.08) - (276.08)
Total comprehensive income 10.214.48 {276.08) a - 9.938.41 139.72 10,078.13
Share of other changes in equity of investee - - - - - - -
Transfers during the year - - = A - - =
Balance at 31 March 2023 69,128.32 190.71 3.685.44 - 73,004.46 (165.22) 72.839.24

Nature and purpose of reserves

i} Retained earnings

Retained carnings comprises of undistributed carnings after taxes

i) Securities premium

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities premium account.

iii) Foreign currency translation reserve

The reserve comprises of the exchange differences on translation of the financial

iv) Other reserves from Joint Venture

of foreign

diaries for the purpose of consolidation.

The amount represents the proportionate deemed investment from Joint Venturer (Kakinada Seaports Limited (KSPL) in respect of the Corporate Guarantee fair valued under Ind AS 109 in the books of the joint venture of Ripley & Company
Stevedoring & Handling Pvt Ltd & Ripley Infrastructure Private Limited - Kalinga International Coal Terminal Paradip Pvt. Ltd

For Roy & Sengupta Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 324171E

Subhaiit Rov

Partner

Membership No. : 205836
UDIN :23205836BGTMVK4025

Place: Kolkata
Dated : 25th September, 2023

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Ripley

Place: Kolkata
Dated : 25th September, 2023

0. Stevedoring &

dling Private Limited.

Vot

~
o
Prabal Mukheriee

Director
DIN : 05255069

Place: Kolkata

Dated : 25th September, 2023




Riptey & Co. Stevedoring &

Notes to the ¢ £

Handling Private Limited.
it ol

{Amueunts i rapues lekhe, anless otherwise specified}

2 Property, plant and cquipment

Descriptfon Land Building Furniture and Office Equipment Computer & Plant and Vehicles Efcctronke Veuel Flaating Cranc Tatal asrels
fixtures Accerunpiry AMachinery Baege & Tug
Grows block
Balance as at | Apal 2021 12361 26142 3840 15465 22460 585732 1431077 344 - 4.335353 2833172
Addrions - . I8! 1787 2250 1534 ITGE - 10.581 60 - HL682 46
Drespomals - - - - {50 - £3)| - - . 26,59
Trunshation & ferenes - - - - - - - - 183 91 - IRt
Balunce as at 31 Murch 2022 123.61 Tatd2 422t 17252 24321 KRT44T 1433580 44 1076551 4.35553 32171190
Balanc al b Apnl 2022 12361 26142 3221 {d e i BRIGLT 34 10.763 51 4355353 30710
Additions - 612 1334 3443 . 240 - 124363 - 1545428
posals - - - - - - - - 11532
Eezognation on sals of suhsidanes - . - - - - - (0765 51, - (30765 513
Transhateon Jilference - - - [ . . 143 - ]2 6), - md 03
Balance ny at 31 March 2023 123.61 1154 S2.3% 206.97 243.21 9.598.13 16 54014 544 12,728,258 +,355.83 44,12%.19
Accumulated depreciation
Halance as at 1 Apnl 2021 - 335 A46 6152 w7 313363 668661 152 - 433 14 10,500 58
Deprecastion for the vear - BB 173 2673 4088 75789 119352 1.2 J4232 IR LO2RAT7
epreciaton on dispasals - - - - 246, - 11513y - - - i17 541
Translaton dillerenes . - - - - - - - 769 - 764
Balance as ar 31 March 2022 - ALIE 12,12 34.65 133.12 389151 137181 116 450,01 £30.91 1313836
Balanceos at | Apnl 222 - 4210 1.9 Has 1322 1895151 T.471.01 236 45001 63091 13128350
Depreeratson for the vear - 923 EEH] 3562 132 68144 138061 (B3] 160945 MR 200124
Ixeprecition oo dissesals - - - - - - 19.62}] - - - 02
. . . . . - - . (1.589 201 - (1389363
Derecogniion on sabe of subsliares
Translaton difference - - - 060 - - 002 - 4305 - ey
Balapce as ut 31 March 2623 - 5132 16,67 150.27 134.74 457297 224281 1M N33 T18.4% 15663589
Net block
At A1 3E March 2023 123.61 216.21 3568 56.70 108.47 S025.E5 730616 1.54 1201494 357681 18,4653
As At 11 March 013 236! 21932 a2 7787 115 99 4 985 14 G454 70 268 18,315 508 3iMnl 2604354

I The tetle deads of smmovable properties disclesed in the finaneal statements are held m the neme of the Company.
2 Thic loans from banks ane secured by chazge on plant and machmery,




Ripley & Co, Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continwed}
{Amouants in rupees lakhs, unless etherwise specified)

2  Right-efuse asset

Deseription | _Right-of-use assers | Total
Vessel*

Gross bloek
Bafance as at | Aprii 2021 - -

Addilions 14,176.62 14,176.62
Disposals - -
Translalion dilfercnce 24640 2464
Balance as at 31 March 2622 4423.4 14.423.14
Balarce as a1 F Apnl 2622 BA423.H 1442300
Additions - -
Disposals - -

sl on sale of subsidianics (5, 423.0H) (14423.1)
Translation &flerence - -
Batance as at 31 March 2023 - -

Accumutated depreciation

Batance as at | April 202} - -
Depreciation lor the vear 36415 30415
Deprociation on disposals - -
Translation dilfereee 633 633
Balanrcs as at 31 Morch 2022 37048 3N.58
Balance as at | April 2022 s 37048
Depreciation for the vear 216,46 916.46
Depreciation on disposals - -
Dxerecognition on sale of subsidianes {L3HD.34) {1,309.39
Transtation dilference 2240 2L
Balance as at 31 Mareh 2023 - a
Net block

As At 31 March 2023 -
Ay At 31 Murch 2022 1405254 14.052.54




Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.
Nates to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
{Amounts in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise specified}

3 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-

Description Total
progress
Balance as at 1 April 2021 10.18 10.18
Additions - -
Capitalised during the period - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 10.18 10.18
Balance as at 1 April 2022 10.18 10,18
Additions - -
Capitalised during the period - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 10.18 10.18

Ageing schedale for Capital-work-in progress:

As at Mareh 31, 2023
Capital work in progress Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
vears
Projects in progress - - 10.18 10.18
Proiects temporarily suspended - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022
Capital work in progress Amouont in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 year I-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
years
Projecis in progress - - 10,18 - 10.18

Projects temporarily suspended
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Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.
ial st inued

Notes to the Hdnted i

{Amounts in rupecs lakhs, unless othierwise spegified)

16 Share canitul

Particulars

Autharised 2

TOTAL

Issucd, subscribed and paid-up:

5.00.000 (31 March 2032 : 5.00.006 ) equity shares of Bs. 10 cach,

500,600 (31 March 2022 : 5.00.0%) ) cquiry shares of Rs. 10 ¢zch fully paid-ug

31 March 2623 31 Maych 2022

5006 Socn

56.00 5£0.00
S

50.00 3000

50.00 S0.00
s

The Cornpany has only one class of shares reforred 1o as equily shares having a par salu of Rs. LIV- cach. each holder of equity share is entiticd to voie.
Thete are no rights. preferences and restrclions attached to any share

Reconciliation of number of shares cutstanding at {he beginning and cad of the year :

Equity shares ;

3t March 2023 31 March 2022

Quistanding at the beginning of the vear 5.00.000 300,000
Ecquity shares issned during the vear - -
Quistanding at ke end of the year 500,040 5,140,000
Sharcholders hetding mare than 5% shares in the Company &s set out below:

Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid 31 March 2023 31 dMarch 1022 !

Sampa Bosc REHPL Trust
Shoumik Bosa
Engrgy investment L1d.

Number of Shares  Number of Shares
Yo
206000 40.00%:
2.15,000 43.00%
76.700 15.34%)]

Number of Shares  Number of Shares
%

2,00,000 40.06%
2,15.000 43.00%
76,700 15.34%

Disclosures af Sharcholdings of Promoters is set out belom:

Name of the Promoter 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 % change during
Numberof Shares ~ Number of Shares | Numberof Shzres  Number of Shares the year
%% Yo
Sampa Bose RSHPL Trust 2,00.000 40.60%% 2.00.000 40.00%5| Q00%
Shoumik Bose 2,i5,000 43.00% 2,15.000 £3.00% 0.60%
Mr. Prashant Kumar Jaiswal 8.300 1 66% 8.300 1.66%%| 0.00%
Enzrgy Investmeni Lid 76,700 15.34% 16,700 15.34% 0.00%%
£.00,000 E00%% 506,000 100%:
Name of the Promoter 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 % change during
Number of Skares  Number of Shares | Number of Shares  Number of Shares the year
%o - Yo
Smnpz Bose RSHPL Trust 200,000 A0.00% - 0.00%% 100.0%
Mrs. Sampa Dose - p.00% 00,000 H0.00% -1G0.G0%G
Shoumik Boze 2.15.000 43.00% 2.15.000 43.00% 0.00%
#r. Prashant Kumar Jaiswal 8300 1.66% %.300 L66% 0.80%
Encray Investment Lid. 76.700 1534% 76,700 15.34% 0.00%|
5,000 L00.846% 5,00,400 100,00%
17 Other equity 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A. Retained earnings 6912832 3801384
B. Securilics premiom 368554 JOBS 44
€. Forcign curceacy transiation reserve 15071 46679
e ARG BI0G60G,

Retained carninga

Gpening balance
Add{Less)y:

Profil for the year

Othier comprehensive income

Remeasurcments of defined beaefit lizbility / (asset)

Securitics Premium
Opening balance
Additions during the year
Closing balance

Foreign currency trapslation reserve
Opening balance

Addnions during the year

Closing balance

Non-Controltinz Tnterest
Opening bakince
Profit for (he year

NClon Iment in Step down Sub
Imestraent in Rapley Northem Dredgi
Closing batance

2 Pyt Led

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

501384 46,285 56
103031 12.607.91

{3922 2636
0%.128,32 SR013.84

31 March 2023 3 Mareh 2022
36854 308544

3,685, 44 J6RS.44

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

466.72 L)
(275 08) 466 49
190,74 466,70

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(04.95) (718

139,65 2
007

(6522} (30495).




Riplev & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.
Naotes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(Amounts in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

4

Investment in equity accounted investees

Investments in joint ventures

3,26,63,400 (31 March 2022 - 3,26,63,400) Fuily Paid Equity Shares of Rs, 10/~ each of Kalinga
Intermational Coal Terminal Paradip Pvt. Ltd

50,000 {31 March 2022 : 50,000) Fully Paid Equity Shares of Rs. [0/- each of OSL Ripley Shipping
Pt Ltd.

50% (31 March 2022 : 50% ) Investment in. Highreturn Rock Minning LLP

Investment in associate at cost

9% {31 March 2022 : Q) (49%) Fully Paid Equity Shares of GBP 1 cach in Ripley Global Limited
2,400 (31 March 2022 : 0) Fully Paid Equity Shares of AED (00 each in Ripley Biue Gceean Limited

Refer Note 48 for detailed disclosures,
Non-current investments
Investments in unquoted preference shares

1,33,32,000 {31 March 2022 : 3.73,20,000 } Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Kalinga
International Coal Teominal Paradip Private Limited of Rs. 10/~ each *

{a) Aggregate amount of quoted investments

(b) Aggregate market value of quoted investments

(a) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

(b) Aggregate amount of impainnent in value of investments

*Refer Note 48 for detailed disciosures.

Non - current financial assets - Loans
{Unsecured, considered good)

Loans and advances given to related panies*

*Refer Note 40 for Related Party Disclosures

Other non-current financial assets
(Unsecured, considered grood)

Bank deposits more than 12 months
Security deposits

Other non-current assets
Capital Advances

Inventories

Raw materials

Finished goods

Consumables and spare parts
Stock-in-trade
Stock-in-transit

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

- 2,195.86

688.49 514.5

- 147
0.48 -
5264 -

74161 3,013.14

LI69.15 133320

1,162,15 133320
L169.15 133320

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

2123843 941338
21,238.43 9,413,338

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

1,304,34 1,067.87
83340 35330

2,157.74 1,621.17
620.84 -
620,84 -

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

468461 6,063.81
166.84 169.84
95326 759.89

1.264.23 158.78

7.071.94 7,152.32




Riplev & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.
Naotes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(Amounis in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

10 Tradereecivables 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecyred, considered pood 13,000.38 26,304.76
Unsecured, considered doubtful 1,620.77 1,325.28
less: Provision for doubtful debts {1,620,77) (1,325.28)
Unbilled Revenue 601,37 663.92

13,601.75 26,968.68

Refer Note :40 for Related Party Disciosures

(i} Undisputed Trade Reccivables — considered good

Not due 9.863.58 4,841.29
Less than 6 months 1,376.12 15,834 40
6 months - 1 year 579.21 1,912.09
1-2 years £,i39.63 3.564.52
2.3 years 141635 219.11
More than 3 years 243,75 228.62
14,621.16 27,630.04
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk
Not due - -
Eess thar 6 months - -
6 months - 1 year - -
[2 years - -
2-3 years - -

(iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Not due - -
I.ess than 6 months - -
6 months - | year - -
-2 years N -
2-3 years - -

(iv) Disputed Tracde Receivables — considered pood

Not due . - N
Less than 6 months - .
6 months - | year - R
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
Moare than 3 years _ .

(v) Disputed Trade Reccivables — which have significant inerease in credit risk

Not due - -
Less than 6 months . .
6 months - | year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
Mare than 3 years - -

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables ~ eredit impaired

Not due - .
Less than 6 months - N
6 months - 1 year - .
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - .
{vii) Unbilled dues - -
Not due - .
Less than 6 months - .
6 months « | year - .
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - R

More thar 3 years - -

1.ess: Provision for deubtful receivables {1,620.77) (1,323.28)

Add : Unbilled 60E.37 663.92

13,601,795 26,968.65




Rinfev & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
{Amounts in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

11 Cash and cash equivalents 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash in hand 26.31 82.53
Bilis of exchange - 547
Balances with banks

In current account LO1L41 2463325
In fixed deposit wish original masrity less than 3 months 3.674.00 3,157.18
4,711.73 5,878.43

12 Other bank balances 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fixed deposits in banks with maturity more than 3 months but less than [2 months 9.900.64 6,806,97
Fixed deposits against lien from banks 6,040.00 560125

15,940.64 12,418,22

13 Current financial assets - Loans 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Loans to employees 24.16 28.18
Loans to related party 4,275.28 -

4,299.44 28.18

14 Other current financial assets 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 3,076.08 1,392,56
Deposits 198.36 267
Security deposits 13,82 £3.82
Due from a related party 54.00 i2.36
Interest receivable 452,02 -
Other receivable 1.09 -

3,795.37 1,421.41

15 Other current assets 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance with government authorities 73743 680.79
Advances to staff 0.15 -
Prepaid expenses 359.97 1,868.49
Advances 1o supaliess 1,863.78 3,998.80
GST TDS & Input Tax Credit 89.38 89.32

3,050.72 6,637.3%




Rinley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
{Amounts in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

18 Non-current financial liabilities - borrowings 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Secured
From bank 6,132.45 5674.35
From NBFCs 139.33 -
Srei Equipment Firance Ltd - 68,53
6,271.78 5,742.88
Note :

The above loans are secured by charge on plant and machinery.

19 Lease liabilities - Non-current 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease liabilities - 5,659.00
- 5.659.00

20 Provisions - Non-current 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for gratuity 694,39 472,95
694.30 472.95

21 Other non-current lizhilities 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Deferred Guarantee Commissicn 156.47 -

756,47 -

22 Borrowings - Current 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Secured

From banks 586.60 -

Loan from directors 163.93 -

Loar from others 753.06 -
Bank overdraft* 5,482.62 1E£.940.26
Current maturities of long term borrowings 3,152.5¢ 6,360.30

10,538.71 18,300.56

*Bank overdralt is secured by fixed depesits.
23  Lease liabilities - Current 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Lease liabilities - 1,523.72

- 1,523,712




Rinlev & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
{Amounts in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

24 Trade payables

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Total ontstanding dues to micro enterprises ard small enterprises 47.66 184.01
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and simall enterprises 12,962,535 16.895.94
13,016.20 17,075.96

{i) MSME
Less than 1 year
1-2 years
243 years
More than 3 years

(i) Others
. Less than § year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
Less than 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

(iv) Disputed dues— Others
Less than § year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

(v) Accruals
Less than | year
1.2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

25  Other current financial liabilities

31 March 2022

47.66

31 March 2022

148,58

47.66

895543
2,498.91
1.478.36

140

148,58

12,553.87
4,339.53
2.54

12,927.11

16,895,94

3544

35.44

35.44

35.44

13,010.20

17,079.96

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Expenses payable 1,338,06 825.69
Interest payable 979.83 275.26
Salary and wages payable 428.29 416.54
Bonus payable 1959 197.42
Rayalty / DMF payable 3228 3218
Due to related parties 50.28 -
Accruals .43 63.67
Management remuneration payable 2795 -
Other payable 9.81 1.19
Audit fees payable 6.45 6,15
Trade Licence Payable 08,02 0.02
3,078.34 1,818.23

26 Other current liabilities

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Statutory dues payable 888.65 1,278.59
Advances from customers 571.55 2,763.14
Uneamed Revenue 218.04 -
Deferred Guarantec Cormmission 99,25 -
Advance from directors 0.05 005
1,777.54 4,042.38

27 Provisions - Current

Provision for gratuity

31 March 2023

36.05

31 March 2022

18.95

36.08

18.95




Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.
Maotes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(Amounts in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

28 Revenue from operations For year ended 31 For year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Sate of services 88,280.07 64,846 68
Sate of goods 59,734.37 70,905.17
Revenuc fram chartering of vessel 3,08675 3.263.66
Royalty and DMF - 5408
Unbilled revenue 601.37 663.92
Hire income 1,083.54 -
Bunker sncome 1,306.96 -
Lube el income 57.28 -
1.55.030.34 1.39.733.51
2%  therincome For year ended 31 For year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Interest income 2,111.50 1,623.39
(Gainf{loss) on foreign exchange fluctuations 148052 13861
Insurance claso: received 191.09 T6.73
Corporate Guarantee Commission 18233 -
Recovery of Bad Debt 200.00 -
Miscellaneous income 51.49 104.84
Interest Received Income Tax Refund 812 -
Inmterest on Fixed Deposit 578 343
Interest inceme en loan given to related parties 0.34 -
Gain/({oss) on sale of fixed assets 0.30 193
Liabilitzes no longer requited written back 039 0.04
Exchange gain 002 -
4,231.90 1,948.25
30 Purchases of stock-in-rade For year ended 31 For year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Purchases Cost of Stock-in-trade 50,496.74 46,441.2%
Ocean Freight & Insurance 3,661.04 4,846 47
Vessel Demumrage 259.79 13253
Custem Duty on Imports 16,68 744.73
Agency & Survey Fees/Clearing & Supervision 2,829.36 1,944.22
57.363.62 54.100.17
31 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-prageess For year ended 31 For year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Finished goods
Decrease / (Inerease) 14.97 6,730.69
Consumables and spare parts
Decrease / (Increase) (34.59) {236.93)
§0,39 6.493.75
32 Employee benefits expense For year ended 31 For year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Salaries and wages 6,031.86 5,795.86
Directors fees 633.79 45.02
Gratuity and bonus 468.09 34060
Leave encashment 8277 70.58
Cenmbution 1o provident fund 32734 32077
Staff welfare expenses 193.65 192.0¢
7,137.51 6,764.88




Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
{Amounts in rupees lakbs, unless otherwise specified)

33

34

Finance costs

Interest on loans
Sceured
Unsecured
Interest on bill discounting and everdrafl
Interest on delayed payment 16 trade payables and unsecured loan
Interest on Statutory Dues
Irterest on Performance BG
Unwinding of interest on deferred Guarantee Commuissson
Bank Charges
Interest on lease fiabilty
Interest on income taxes

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 2)
Diepreciation of right-of-use asset {refer note 2)
Amortisation of intangible assets

For year ended 31
March 2023

For year ended 31
March 2022

491.76 7170
53896 207.94
806.19 39394
215 274
16.52 098
- 14.11
Q006 -
80.36 1493
728.73 24992
- 38.80
2,784,712 1,101.08
For year ended 31 For year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
4,091.28 2628.67
Sl646 364.15
- 8.05
3,007.75 3.000.86




Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.
Notes to the consalidated finaneial statements (continued)
{Amounts in ropees lakhs, unless otherwise specified}

3% Qther expenses

For year ended 31
March 2023

For year ended 31
March 2022

Purchase of input service {contract / sub-contract) 3474262 2453711
Dredging Hiring - 576.49
Consultancy charges 18.49 43.14
Docking & HUndocking Expenses 189.00 -
Royalty and other port ¢hanges including dock permit 3,103.94 2,392.83
Stares & Consumable 5,211.57 441007
Purchase of consumables and spare parts 1,163.15 7570
Brokerage and commision 0.03 53940
Utshnies 10,343.73 7.944.68
Professional cherges operation and general 2,646 85 1,7i208
Repairs
Machinery 1,620.82 1,389.86
Buiiding 63.71 111.86
Demmurage and detention duc to poor discharge / loading rate and punitive charges 23213 1,954.61
Fransportation / freight and launch hire charges 1,301.79 1,131.93
Labour Charges 251.07 157.87
Troller & Boat Hire Charges 775 383
Rates and taxes 668.12 375.06
Rent including plot rent for trading and logistics 1,042.06 67274
[nsurance 264.21 24081
Traveliing expenscs a63.6l 2810
Hotel,boarding and lodging 16.28 275
Bus:ness prometion including advertisment 1,623.36 1,416.61
Communication 46.05 3365
Legal and Professionzl Fees 92.48 3090
Visa expenses 1292 736
Commssion 628.93 2.163.10
Packing charges 074 036
Corporate social responsibility 296.00 23576
Survey & Testing 8¢ 226
Security Charges - 3189
Donation 750 5¢ 100.60
Bad debt 200 4349
Provisions for bad and doubtfis| debis 495 49 42031
CPF 1.19 -
Office expenses 018 13247
GST Exepnses 186 -
Management fees 30342 -
Loss on sale of investment in subsidiaries 231.70 -
Withholding 1ax pa:d 4539 -
Miscelianecus expenses 20779 165.54
Audit fee 6.00 5.85
Tax audit 0.50 4.50
QOther capacity 1.65 o7
67,704.82 53,491.71




Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.
Notes to Hie lidated fi ial st {contirued)
{Assounts in rupces [akds, unless otherwise specifed)

36 Taxes

2} Statement of profit or loss

Particulars For year ended 31 | For year ended 3E
March 2033 Narch 2022
Current tax 521078 432345
Tax in respect of carlier vears .
Deferred tax (meluding MAT crodit entuloment) (478 45} 1276 83)
Inceme tax exjiense reported in the statement of profit orlass 4.732.34 404662
)  Oiber comprehensive income {0CT
Taxes relaied 10 itams recogmsed in OCH dusing it the year
Particulurs For year ended 31 | For year ended 31
March 2023 March 023
Remeasurements gains and losses on post emplovment benefits 30.01 16.85)
{acome tax recognised in OCT 30.061 [6.H5)
) Balance sheet
Tax assets
Particulars For year ended 3§ | For year ended 31
March 2023 March 022
Non- current (ax assels - “
Curreat 1ax assels 2347161 18,103 28 =
Provision for (ax provieus year - 220
Total tax asscts 23471461 1810106
Current tax lizbilities
Particulars For year ended 31 | For year caded 31
March 2023 March 2022
Income tax {net of provision) 21.293.71 £6, 11465
Totat curcend tas fiabilities 21.293.71 1G,114.65
dy Deferred tax
Particulars For yeazr ended 31 | For year ended 31
March 2623 March 2023
Deferred tax Hability {DEL)
Excess of depreciation/anortisation on property, plant and cquipment 1.653.57 1.635.44
under Income Tav Act
EA663.87 1.635.44
Deferred 1ax usset (DTAY
ECL on trade reccivables (07.92y (333.55)
Grauzty (182.59) (123.02)
MAT crednt entitlement (135.18) 12345)
Equily accounting of joint ventures (B46.36). 159 B
Broupht farward losses {8i33) (58717
{1.653.57) (1.126.99)
Net teferred tax liabilitviiaseet) - 50844

* | asscssing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the Company considars Uk extent 1o which it i5 probable that the deferred (ax assets will be realized. The ultimate reslization of defemed tax assets is dependent pon
1he peneration of futur iaxable profits during the periods in which those temporary differences and wx Joss cammy « forwards become deductible. The management of the Company does nol foreses that there will be
sullicient firure taxable profits which wiil be availabie wo sci off ths losses. Hence, the company has restricled recognising defeered tas asseis 10 the extent of deferred fax liavilities.




Ripley & Co, Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited,
Notes to (he ¢ lidated financial st {continued)
{Amaunts in rupees lakhs, unless ofherwise specified)

¢} Reconciliation of tax cxpense and the accouating profit mlliplicd by
India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022;

For year ended 31 | For year endeld 35
March 2023 March 2022
Accounting profit befors s 1587570 1643676
Tax as per 1T Act on above ‘@; 25.168% (Prey. year - 25.168%) (A) 381942 +,136.80
Tax expenses
(1) Current 12x 321078 432345
(i) Deferred tax +78.4h 2768
(B} +.732.34 1.046,62
Difference ) {912.92) 00.18
Tax reconciliation
Adjusiments:
Pennanent disaliowances 26230 63.35
Exempl income - -
Unrecognised deferred tax assel 62798 (136.98)
Oihers 2244 343
N Dlavement in temporary differences:
01 April 2021 Recogaised in Recognised iz For year caded  Recognised in Recognised in For year ended
profit or loss OCH dluring 31 March 2023 profit or lass QCI during 31 March 2023
dusing the year during the year
the vear the vear
Excess of depreciationamortisation on propeny, plant and <quipment 1.595.31 40.12 - 163544 1513 - 1.653.57
under Income Tax Act
ECL on trade receivables Q27.76 (105.78) - (33355 (7379 - 0792
Gratuity (L.63) (25.24 ¢85 €123.02) 29.57 (30.01) (182.59)
Equity accounling of joint ventures. 337 {03.17y - {59.80) {786.56} - (846.36)
Broupht forward losses (187.86) 9931y - {58717 305.65 - (81.52)
Prcliminary cxpenses - - - - - -
MAT credit catillerent - 12345 - {2345) (11173 - (13311
178.43 (276.83) 6.88 50844 (H78.44) 130.01) 1060

The Group oflseis tax asseis and liabilities if and only f it has a epally enlorceable gight to sel ofl current fax assels and current 1ax liabilities and the deferred (ax assels and deferred 1ax liabilitics relate to income taxes
lavied by the same tax authority.




Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)
(Amounts in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

37 Earnings Per Share

Particulars For year ended 31 | For year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Profit / (Loss) atfributable to equity sharcholders 10,303.71 12,607.91
Basic Earpings Per Share
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 5.00 5.00
Basic EPS (Rs.) 2,060.74 2.521.58
Diluted Earnings Per Share
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for diluted EPS 3.00 5.00
Diluted EPS (Rs.} 2,066.74 2,521.58
38 Contingent liabilities:
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Bank Guarantees 902.09 811.53
Corporate Guarantees 78,036.00 23,650.68

78,938.09 24,462.21

39

* Out of the total corporate guarantee provided amounting to Rs.34,700/- Lakhs against facility availed by KICTPPL, the liability of the
company is limited to 24% pursuant to the agreement entered with co-promoters . The guarantee obligation disclosed above is for the full

amount for which the gearantee is extended. RSHPL liability basis co-promoters agreement will be Rs.13,128/- Lakhs.

* The Company has given Corporate Guarantee for Netincon Logistics Pvt. Ltd. (related party) to Tata Capital finance Services Ltd. against
loan of Rs. 3,084 Lakhs for procurement of a Barge to be used for the company as per its needs.

* The company has given Corporate Guarantee in favour of Indusind Bank against a loan of USD 9.4 million for vessel MV Ripley Pride
(Former SPV1 of Ripley Commodities FZ LLC)

* The company has extended Corporate Guarantee in favour of Chailease Financial Services against a loan of USD § million for vessel MV
Ripley Pioneer (SPV3 of Ripley International DMCC)

Sale of subsidiaries

The investments in wholly owned subsidiaries' (tabulated below), were sold at cost to another related party, Ripley Blue Ocean Limited, on 21
March 2023. The impact of loss on disposal of subsidiaries of USD 288,209 is recognised in the statement of consolidated profit or loss.

The following is an extract of the financial net worth of subsidiaries as of the date of disposal:

Extract of Statement of financial position Ripley Pride Limited | Ripley Prosperity
Limited
(USP) {(USD)
ASSETS
Non-current Assets 127.74 173.97
Current Assets 4.23 0.63
Fotal Assets 131.97 174.60
LIABILITIES
Non-curreat Liabilities 58.81 89.86
Current Liabilities 71.93 82.54
Total Liabilities 130.75 172.4¢
Carrying value of net assets 1.23 2.20
Sale proceeds .27 0.27
Net loss on disposal 6.95 1.93
Net loss on disposal (USD) 2.88
Exchange Rate (INR/USD) 80.3%
Net loss on disposal {INR) 231.70




Ripley & Ca. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited.
WNoetes to the finzncial statements (continued)
{Amounls in cupees Takhs, unless otherw ise apecificd)

40 Refated Party Diselosures

{a) Lisi of Related Partics and descrption of relationshig:

Subshdinries

[ipley Ofishore Pmate Lomted

Tuples Shipping Private Limsted

Hipley Infrastruczure Private Limited

Tapley Northermn Dredng Private Liatied

Raplex Ohwrseas Pie Limited

Rapley Commodsties FZ-LLC

Rupler Internatonal DMCC

Repley Stuppmg India IFEC Prvate Linnted (Step-down subsidianyy
Raples Tieneer Limited (Step-dawn subsidran
Rapley Prde Lusuted (Step-donn subsidiany ) ®
Ripley Prospenty Lonuted (Step-donn subsidiany  ®

*The muestments i step-dovsn subsihanes, Rupley Pride Lunited snd Ripley Prespenty Laned, wore soid to o related pany. Ripley Blue Ocean Litwted. on 21 March 2023. Ripley Price Limited and Ripley Prospenly Lunded are now

whotly owned subsidianes of Rapley RBlue Occan Lunaed.

Assoriates [ Joint Ventures:

OSL. Ripley Shpping Provate Laimited

Kalinpz International Caal Temninal Paradip Penate amped
Ehgh Returty Rock Mianing LLP

Ripley Globat Lamied, Associate

Rupley Blue Ovean Lunated, Associate

Other related partics:

Ripley & Co.Ltd. Sharcholders having significant intlusnice

Coanos Foud Exports Put Bd.. Shereholders and Directors havine sipmificant wfluenece
Nelineon Logsstics Pt Lid, Sharcholders and Directors having sipificant indlusnee
Netnon Marketing Prt Lid, Sharcholders having sipnilicant influence

Haldia Floatig Tentinal Privite Lited, Errector hasing sipniicant miluence
Pratidin Prakasiani P L, Sharebolders honing sapraficant influence

Kakinada Scaports Lionted sKSPL3, Co-Venturers

Bothm Shpping Seiviess Prvate Limied, Co-Ventunrs
Ravt UChanct Dothra Sons Pmate Limied, Co-Vinjurers
Suchiia Mitlenwum Projezts Private Limited. Co-Venturrs
COriss Stevedors Ltd, Co-Venturers

Tanbulk Shipping DMCT

Ripley Pde Lunated, Subsidiary of associale *

Riples Prospenty Limited, Subssdiary of associste *

Key Management Porsonnei (KMPY

Shoumik PBost
Prashant Kumar Jaisoal
Pratal Mukhetjer
Goldon Smba

() Refarcd party eransactians;

Remunertion paid to the ky manapement personnel (XMP) of the holding company©

For year ended 31

For year ended 3E

Particelars March 2023 Mareh 2022
Shott-tenn employes hopefits 23143 43200
Postemplarment definad benefit - -
Prrector siltg fees - -
Emplovee share based povinent - -
Total compaasation 9343 432.90

8r. $Nature of Tramszction For vearcnded 31 March 2623 For year ended 3i Marck 1622

ng Entitics where Key Joint hher relaled partics TFotat Enlliies where Key Joint Other relaled partics Toral

Vent A izt Management YenturestAsseciate
2 URelatlve of [ i ive of Compei
Key Manzgement Key Management
Personncl hay Personnel has
significanl influence significant influcace

T ilean - YR4.52 - 954.52 - 363567 336 63| 423130

2 iPurchase - LI RA8] 05 100934t - - AT £.007.23

1 fhule - 326682 127 2448474 . 214398 321058 536150

4 ilmterestexpense on loan - 14550 A63.06 LI%0.86 . 4749 1040 3865y

& inlerest meome on fazn - - 03 (2]

& Hove Snled of equay shones - - - - - 1330036 = {2,300.16°

- 8.088.91 28.605.00 35,753.90 " 401768 787134 1188962 i

Balznces outstanding al the end of the years-

Particulars

A3t 31 March 2023

As at 3F March 2022

Laans piven

Trade arl other payables

Tradz and other revenables
Interest recenable

Interet pavable

Imvesiment in equity shares
Invesiment sn preference shares
Managemnent seniuneration pavable

23397 7242067
2142355 45806
199348 1.31275

33550 -
181 34 -
129634 32%6.34
29320 93.20
2708 .
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41

()

th)

Firancial risk munugement

Tha Group's board of dircctors has overalf responsibiliy for the estabtshment and sversighl of he Group's nsk management ramework. The board of dircelors is respensible for develaping
and memtesing Uie Group's aisk mansgement policies, The board regularly meets 10 deside its risk managemant activilics.

The Group's risk policies are established lo identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to sl appropniate risk fimils and contrels 10 moniter risks and adherence (o Limats.
Risk managemen: policics nnd sysiems are reviewed regularly 1o reflect ehanges in market conditions and the Groops activitics. The Group, Urongh sts trainng and management slandards
and procedures, sims Lo maintain a disciplined and ¢ control ! ! d their roles and obhigations

i which all employ
The Group’s maragement monitors comphance with the Group's risk management palicics and procedurcs, and reviews the adsquacy of (he nisk management framevwork in relation lo the
rishs faced by the Group. The Bomd is also assisted by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regolar and adhoe reviews of risk management controls and precedures, the eesulls of
which are reponied to the Board of dircctors.

The Group has exposure to Lhe following risks ansing from financial instramguts
- credil rish - sce nole {z) below

- liquidity risk - sa¢ note (b) below

- market nish - see note {c) below

Credit risk

Credit sk is the risk of financial loss 1o the Group il a customer or counterparty 1o a financial mstrument fails 1o mect its contractual obligations, and ariscs pringipally fron: the Group's
regeivables from customers.

‘The Group's exposure te credit risk is influenced mamly by the individual of ishies of each However, alsa the factors that may influence the credit risk

of its base, ke default nsk d with the indusiry and counlry in which custonizrs oporalc

Cradit risk is managed through credit appronals, eslablishing credit limits and continuausly moniloring the cocdiworthingss of customers 1o which the Group grants credin 1omms in the normal
caurse of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 149, the Group uses expecied eredit Ioss model 36 2s5ess impawment loss or gain,

Particulurs As it Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance as at the beginning of the yrar 132524 90457
Amounts written off 200 4349
Allowance for loss ereated during the period 29749 463 81
Closing balance L620.97 132528

Liquidity risk

Ligmdity risk 15 the nsk that the Group will encounter difficully in mechng the obligalions associated with its financiat liabilitics that are sctiled by delivering cash or another financial assct
The Group's approach fo managing liquidity is to ensure, that it witl have safficient liguidity 10 meet its Habilitics when they are due, ender both normal and stressed conditions, without
incutring unecceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's repulation.

The Groug's treasury department is respenstble for liquidity and funding. In addition policies and procedures relating fo such risks are overseen by the management.

‘The Group's principal sources of Jiquidity arc cash and cash cquivalents and the cash ow (hat i5 geacrated from operations

Asat
3F March 2623

Asat

Particulers 31 March 2022

Total currenl assels (A) 75,045.20 78.605.69
Total curzent habilines (8) 49,734 57 5830845
Working capital {A-B) 26.268.53 19.707.24

Following is the Geoup's exposure 2o finanetal liabilitics based on the contractust maturity as at reporting date,

As at 3F Macch 2023
Particulars Cantractual cash Nlows
Careying velue Less than 1 year More than 1 year Taotal
Borrowings 16,210.49 10,538 71 6,271.78 1631049
Trade pay ables 1301020 13,0100 - 130%020
Cther liabiitics 307834 3.073.3¢ - 367334
As g 31 March 2022
Particulars Contractual cash flows
Cacrying value Less than 1 year Marc than 1 year Total
Borronwinis 24,0434 18.300.56 574283 2404354
Trade pavables 17.679.96 17.479.96 - 17,072 96
QOther liabilities 181823 1,818.23 - LLBig23




Hipley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited
Notes to the Auancial statemends {continued)
(Amounts in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise specificd)
{c) Market risk
Market risk is the sk that changes with market prices - sugh as forcign exchange rates and inlerest rates, will affect the group’s income or the vahue of 115 holdings of financial instruments
The objeclive of market sk managenient is Lo manage and contrel markes rish exposures within acceptable parameters, whilc optimising the relum

(it Interest rate risk:
Interest raie risk 15 the risk that the Gir value er fature cash Mows of a financial instrument will Nuctuate becasse of changes in market interest rates. The group's exposure to he risk of

(ii)  Forcipn curvency unhedged exprsure @

Financial assets As at 31 March 2023 As 51 31 March 2022
Forcign currency | Eguivalent amount in | Forcign currency | Equivalent amourt in
rupges runees
‘Trade receivables
usD 203 16012 8333 6,251.00
Lonns and laterest
UsD 237.90 19.352.40
23993 19.710.581 8338 625100
Financial liabilities As at 31 March 2023 As a1 31 March 2022
Foreign currency | Eguivalent ameunt in}  Fozciga currency | Equivalent amount in
RS Frnees
Trade payables
usp 363 202 43 2339 1.828.16
3.63 202.43 24,39 1.828.16
i(.‘nrrcncs‘ wise nee expasure {ussees - As at 31 March 2023 As a1 31 March 2022
inhilities)
Particolars Foreign currency | Equivstent ameunt in| - Foreign currency | Equivalent amount in
rupecs EYRCES
Ush 23639 19.427.10 39.00 4.412.84
Tatsl 236,29 19.427.10 9,00 4.422.84
Secnsitivity analysis
Curreacy Amount in INR Sensitivity %
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
usH 1942710 442284 1.00%|
19.427.10 442284
Curreney Impart on profifequity (1% strengthening) Impact on profitfequity {1% weakening}
Amaunt in i Amount i 7
31 March 2023 3t March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2012
usp 194.27 4923 {19427 (44.23)
Tatal 194.27 H.13 {19£.27) {44.23)

The exchange rate used by the Conpany is that notified by the Resorve Bak of India.

42 Capital management
The Group's capital compnses equity share capital, surplus m the statement of profit and loss and other equity atributable to equiry holders.
The Group's objectives wher mansging capilal are o
~ saleguard their ability Lo conlinug as a going concern, so that they can continug Lo provide reloms for sharchalders and benefits (or other stakeholders, and
- maintain 2n oplimsl capilal structure 1o reduce the cost of capital,

‘The Group monilors capital using debt-cquity ratio, which is nct debt divided by total cquity. These ratios are illustraicd below:

Purticulars As at 31 ¥March 2023 | Ax at 31 March 2022

Total liabilities §574572) 7128073
Less: Cash and eash equis alents and

2065237 18.296.65
bash balonces
Net dehr 3680484 52,085.08
Total equity 13,889.24 62381111

Debt-eguity ratio S0.49% 84.36%




Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(Amounts in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

43  Fair value measurements

{(a) Categories of financial instruments -

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Amortised cost Amortised cost
Category Level 2 Level 2
Financial assefs
Investment 1,169.15 1,333.20
Trade receivables 13,601.75 26,968.68
Cash and cash equivalents 4,711.,73 5,878.43
Other bank balances 15,940.64 12,418.22
Loans 25,537.86 9,441.55
Other financial assets 5,953.11 3,042.58
Total financial assets 66,914.25 59,082.68
Financial labilities
Borrowings 16,810.49 24,043 .44
Trade payables 13,010.20 17,079.96
Other financial liabilities 3,078.34 1,818.23
Total financial liabilities 32,899.04 50,124.35

(b) Fair value hierarchy:
As per Ind AS 107 "Financial Instrument: Disclosure", fair value disclosures are not required when the carrying
amounts reasonably approximate the fair value. As illustrated above, all financial instruments of the Group
which are carried at amortised cost approximates the fair value. Accordingly fair value disclosures have not been
made for these financial instruments.
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44 Addiziona) Information as required by Paragraph 2 of the Genezal Instructions for Preparation of Consolldated Financiat Statemenls to Schedule D1 to the Companies Act, 2013

For the veur ended 31 March 2023

Net Assars. Le. ¢ Share of profil ar loss Share In other comprehensive income| Share in folat comprehensive income
total lakilitics
. As %ol As Yol
Name of the entity s 5h of As %o of comoliduted diber, comsolidated sotal
consalidated net Amount consolldaied Amouni Amgum Amount
a4a0ls profit or foss comprehensive comprehensive
income ingeme
13
ey & Co. Stevedonnz & Handling Prvate Limted. I TGARDRS 13085 13,375 29 1K (8922 134%| 1348607
Subsidiarics
n
Rupfey Inlzastructure Prvate Limited ~1%%) [lerik ] -2%%] {255 18| % - «3% (256,18
Ripley Ofshace Private Linuged Lrer] 1418 A 30300 ot - 4% 39300
Ripley Shipoong Pavate Lunited [ (HI2.48) % (897} L] - %) (8.97)
Riphn Nerthern Dredging Private Limited 195 (H9.267 fead 1353 Yl - 15 1.5
Yorelzn
Ripley Cominodites FZALLC 2% 139283 % H30%) 0% - 0% {45.00))
Riples Ghersess PTE. LTD G| 143.28 b3 0513 % - 1% 10503
Riplcy Intermational DMCC [ M8 i (367.2%
0% 171,55 2% {ETT.67T) 0% - 2% 150.32
Nan-Controlling interest in alt Subsidiancs [T (16332 1% 1363 [ - 1% 13965
Totat E4% 76,102.18 130% £3,537.486 100% (89.22) 137% 13.816.03
Jolrt Vealures and Assoclates
High Rock Mining LLP 1% - 0| 317 %) - 0% 317
S Ripieys Shipping Pyt Lid e - 53 174 3% 6% - 2% 17439
Kohnga International Coal Terminal Py, Lid o - -35%| (3TN (U - -3% 43,607 oM
Ripley Glohal Limited % - 0| - 0% - a2 -
Ripley IHue Ocean Linitad [ - (551 (167 [ - %, (1.67)|
Totul 1% 76,102.18 97% 118811 100% (8%.22) 103% 10,376.28
Adl ansing out of hdati 1% 13.212 24| 3% 325 | 1376.0R) -3%) (300.22)
As a1 3145 March 2023 $00.80%) 72839.24 100.00% 141334 100.00%. (365.3¢ 100.00% | 10,078.06
34338 J0,078.06 |
Far the xear ended 33 March 2022
Net dsses, Le. tora] assets minuy Share of prafit o lass Share in other comprehensive Income| Share in tatal comprehemive Income
total liabitities
AsVeol As%of
Nams of the entily Az % of As 4o of consolidated other cansolidated total
consolldated net Amaunt consatidated Amount Ameunt Amourt
e nrofis o loss comprehemive comprechensive
income Inyeome
Parent
Riplev & Co. Stevedonng & Handling Private Limnted. 1iXRa 6260375 95% j=RIER S 100% Pk 10{%5, 12,1348
Subskdiaries
Indian
Ripiev Infrastructure Povate Limited {309) 2% 1253309 %) - -i%) 1253 30
Riptey Ctshote Privite Limued 1390.49) 0% 43904 04) . w5 (42.90})
Ripley Stupmng Privsle Limuted 193.52)) k1 183 6% () - -1%, 1B £9
Ripley Northern Drodaing $rivate Lonited 352 () 4% (439 15) [ - %] (459.153
Forelan
Ripley Commiolities FZ-LLC 1670 02653 10%) 1.300 22 [t 13489 % 143511
Ripley Oversexs PTE. LID ) 3?7 2% 1231 .90 [ 33160 25 9964
15% 8.295.96 % 49760 A% 366.49 % 96409
Non-Conbrolkng [nterest in all Subsidiznes % (304 957 -2%%| {21777 [ - (15 {217.77),
Toel 114% 71,504.30 0% 12,9375 100% 186.86 10i% 12,580.60
Julnt Ventures and Aseciates
High Rock Mining LLE e - L 18.45)] ) - Fa {RAS)
Q1. Riplevs Shipping Pyt Lid iz - 1% 105.24 [ - %] s 24
Kalmgza intemational Ceat Tenminal Pt (ad 12 - 3% {384 34} P - %% 1384 34
Total 114% Ti50430 28% 12,100.20 100%% 456,86 101% 12,5%6.65
d arising oyt of il -15% 78300 2% 28004 i - % 28094
A at 31t March 2032 $00.60%%. 6281111 1D0.110%! 12.350.14 100.00%: 484.86 D040 12.877.00,




Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited
Netes to the financial statements {continued)
{Amounts in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

45 Post-employment benefit ptans
As per Indian Accounting Standard 19" Employze Benefits”, the disclosures as defined are given below-

A. Defined Contribution Plans
Centnibution to defined contribution plans, recogmised as expense for the year is a5 under:

. For year ended 31 March| For year eanded 31 March
Particulars 2023 2022

Employer's contribution fo provident fund 32734 32077

Group's contribution paid/paysble during the year to provident fund are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

B. Defined Bepefit Plans

Gratuity
The Group has defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan 15 governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Under the act, employee wha has completed five years of service 1s entitled
to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. These benefits are funded with an insurance Group

Liability Risks

i, Asset-Liability mismatch risk- Risk which anises if there is 2 mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the liabilities. By matching duration with the defined benefit labilities, the
Group is successiully able to neutralize valuation swings caused by interest rate movements Hence companies are encouraged to adopt asset-liability management

2. Discount rate risk- Variations in the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilities may seem small, but in practise can have a significant impact on the defined benefit
liabilities

3. Future salary escalation and inflation risk « Since price inflation and salary growth are linked economicaily, they are combined for disclosure purposes. Rising saiaries will often result in
kigher fiture defined benefit payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities especially unexpected salary increases provided at management’s discretion may lead to
uncertainties in estimating this increasing risk.

4. Unfunded Plan Risk - This represents unmanaged risk and a growing lability. There is an inherem risk here that the Group may default on paying the benefits in adverse circumstances.
Funding the plan removes volatility in Group's financials and also benefit risk through return on the funds made available for the plan.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss, the funded status and amounts vecogaised in balance sheet for
the plan.

Net emplovee benefit expense on account of gratuity recognised in emplovee benefit expenses

Particulars
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Current service cost 81.7% 83.00
Net benefit oxpense 81.79 83.00
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as foflows
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2622

INR INR
Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 550.90 47635
Interest cost 4022 3287
Current service cost 81.79 8300
Actuarial (gain) loss on obligations - -
Benefits paid (3.09) (13.90)
Actuarial (gains)lesses on obligations - Due 1o change in demographuc assumptions - -
Actuarial (guns)/losses on obligations - Due to change in finangial assumptions 838 (26.69)
Actuana] (gains)losses on oblipations - Due to expericnce adjustment 11015 {0.73)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 788.56 550.90




Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Nandling Private Limited
Naotes to the financial statements (continued)
{Amtoonts in rupees Fakhs, unless atherwise specified)

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as Follows:

Particulars

As at3T March 2023INR

As at3] March 2022INR

Fair valuc af plan asscts at the beginning of the year 6210 6062
[nterest income 453 418
Centnbutions - 1141
Maortality charges and taxes - -
Benefits pnd 3.09 (L1390
Return on plan assets. excluding amount recopmized in Interest Income - Gain / (Loss) {049 {0.21)
Fair valug of Plan assets at end of the vear 63.06 62.10
Actual return on plan assets {0.49) {0.21)

Re-mensurements for the yvear {Actuarial (gain) / loss)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Experience gain / (loss} on pian habilities 11015 (073}
Demographic gain / (foss}) on plan habslities - -
Financial gawn / (loss) on plan habihities 858 -
Expenence (gain) / foss on plan assets - -
Finangia {gain) / loss on plan assets (.49 (621

Amouni recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Re-measurement for the year - obligation {gain) / loss 118.74 (0.73)
Re-measurement for the vear - plan assets (gain} / loss 049 02]
“Fotal re-measurements cost / {eredit) for the year recognised in other comprehensive income 112.23 (0.52)

Net Defined Benefit Liability/(Asset) for the year

Particulars

As at31 March 2023INR

As at3] March 2022INR

Non-Current

Defined benefit obligation 788.56 55080
Fair value of plan assets 63.06 62.10
Closing net defined benefit liability/{asset) T25.50 488.80
Current 34.51 1741

650.99 471 .39

‘The major categories of plan assets as 2 percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as fallows:

| Nature of plan assets

[ As at31 March 2023INR | As at31 March 2022INR |

I Funds managed by insurer

100.00%]

100.00%)]

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity oblipations for the Group®s plan are shown below:

Assemptions
Particalars As at31 March 2023INR | As at31 March 2022INR
Mortality table 100% of TALM (2012- 14) [ 100% of TALM (2012- 14)
Discount rate 720% 7.30%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 500% 5.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Withdrawal rate #
Age upto 30 years 300% 3.00%
Age 31 - 44 years 200% 2.60%
Age above 44 vears 1.00% 1.00%
I Expected average remaining working lives of employees {in vears) I 14.78] 15 ]
* it is actuarialy calculzted term of the liability using probabilities of death, withdrawal and retirement.
# Assumption has been revised by the Group based on their past experience and future expectations
A guantitative sensitivity analysis for signiflicant assumption as at 31 March 2023 is as shown below:
Assumptions Defined benefit obligation
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
INR INR
Increase by 100 basis Decrease by 104 basts Inerease by 100 basis Decrease by 100 basis
points oints noints points
Discount Rate {-/ + 1%4) 708.68 882.69 491.60 62125
Salary Growth Rate {-/+ 1%) 885.91 704.77 623.70 488 71
Attrition Rate {-/ + 50%3) 800.85 715.03 56113 53955
Monality Rate (- / + 14%) 701713 785.30 55340 548 34 I




Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements {continned)
{Amaounts in rupees lakhs, unless otherwisc specified)

Sensitivity analysis indicates the influence of a reasonable change in certain significant assumptions on the outcome of the Present value of obligation and aids in understanding the
uncertainty of reported amounts. Sensilivity analysis is done by varying one parameter at a time and studying its impact

Expected contributions for the next year

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 823.07 lakhs towards its gratity fund i 2024

Expected future benelit payments
The following benefit payments, for each of the next five years and the aggregate five years thereafier, are expected to be paid:

Expected cash flows over the
next (valued oo undisceunted INR
basis)
1 Year 3451
2to 5 Year 18911
6to 10 Year 33725
10th vear onwards 151293




Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited,
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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46 Revenue from contracts with customers

A. Revenue streams

Particulars For year ended 31 For year ended 31
March 2023 March 2622
Revenue from operations
Sale of services 88,280.07 64,846.68
Sale of goods 39,714.37 70,%05.17
Revenue from chartering of vessel 3,986.75
Royalty and DMF - 54.08
Unbilled revenue 601.37 663.92
Hire income 1,083.54 -
Bunker income 1,306.96 -
Lube oif income 57.28 -
1,35,030.34 1,36,469.86
Particulars For year ended 31 For year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Timing of revenue recognition
Over the period in time 95,258.69 65,564.68
At point in time 59,771.65 70,905.17
Total revenue 1,55,030.34 1,36,469.86
Movement in Contract Liabilties:
Particulars For year ended 31 For year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Opening balance - -
Add: Additons during the Year 218.04 -
Less: Revenue recognised during the Year - -
Closing balance 218.04 “
Movement in Contract Assets:
Particulars For year ended 31 For year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Opening balance 663.92 542,58
Less: Revenue recognised / reversed during the year (663.92) (542.58)
Add: Unbilled recognised at the end of reporting date 601.37 663.92
Closing balance 601.37 663.92




Ripley & Co. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited
Notes to the firancial statements {continued)
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47 Leases

{a) Lease liahilities

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

Particulars

31 March 2022

Particulars
2023 2022

Current - 1,523.72
Non-current - 3.655.00
Total - 7,183
{b) Interest cxpenscs on lease liabilities
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
interest on lease liabilities 728 73 249.92
(¢} Expenses on short term leases / low valuc assets
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Short term fease 1,042 06 672.74
Low value assets - -
{d} Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flow

For the year ended i For the ycar ended

31 March 2022

Total cash outflow/(inflow) for leases
Principal repayment
Interest repavment

{6,877.96)
(34592)

Total cash outflowi{inftow) lor leases

{7,127.78)

(e) Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash Nows

As at 31 March

Asat 31 March

Particulars

2023 2022
Less than one year - 1,523.72
More than one vear - 3.656.00
Total undiscounted lease liabilities - 7,182,72
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48 Investment in Equity accounted - Envestees

Naeme of the company Relation Country of % of ownership
incorporition interest

Kakhnga International Coal Terminal Paradip Pvt Ltd* Jaint Venture India 33%

OSL Ripley Shipping Pvt Ltd Joint Venture India 50%

High Return Rock Mining LLP Jaint Venture India 0%

Ripley Blue Ocean Limited* Associate United Arab Emirates 24%

Riptey Global Limized* Associate England and Wales 4%%

*The entities are newly incarporated and do not have material transactions. Hence, detailed disclosures are net provided.
The tables below provide summarised Onancial information for those joint vertures that are material to the group:

A) Kalinga International Coal Terminal Paradip Pvt Ltd

Summarised Balance Sheet 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Current asset

Cash and cash equivalents 620.66 1,237 80 683.65

Other current assets 8,849.93 42417 59321
Tolal Non-cusrent asset $4,330.89 90,539.93 81,411.68
Current liabilities

Financial liabilities (5,694.59) (1,137.82) (3,530.12)

Other liabilities {279.13) - -
Non-curzent liabilities

Financial liabilities (82,974.49) (77,389.70) (59.334.11}

Other liabilities (34.32) (2,647.98) (7.564.64)

Deferred tax lizbilities (3,794.80) - (0.25)
Equity 1.044.16 11,046.41 12,253.43
Preportion of the group's ownership interest* 33.35% 33.33% 3333%
Carrying amount of the group’s interest 116915 3.829.06 4,213.40
Carrying amount®* 1.169.15 3.820.06 4,213.40

*The group has acquired an additional stake in the company as on 26th March 2021

Reconciliation to carrying amounts

31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022 31 March 2021
Opening carrying value 249586 2,880.20 1,176.77
Share of other changes in equity of investee - - -
Profit for the vear (3,607.90) (384 34) {314.90)
Tnvestment in additional equity 1ssued - - 201834
Deemed investment** 948.00 - -
Losses set off against the Investment in Compulsorily Converiible
164.05 - -
Preference Shares
Farrymg amount of equity investment {including deemed . 2,495.86 2,880.20
investment)
[nvestment in Compulsonly Convertible Preference Shares 1,333.20 1,333.20 133320
Losses set off against the Invesiment in Compulsorily Converiible
{164.05) - -
Preference Shares
Carrying amount of investment in CCPS 1,169,15 1,333,20 1,355.20
Closing carr\'ing amoint 1.169.15 3,829.06 4,213.40

**The amount represents the deemed investment m Kalinga Intemnational Coal Terminal Pyt Ltd. on account of cerporate guaraniee given,
Interest in the joint venture includes the carrying value of the invesiment and includes any long term interests, that in substarce, form part of the entity’s net investrment in the joint
venure, Losses recognised using the equity method in excess of the eatity's invesiment in oridinary shares are applied to the other components of the entity's interest in the joint

venture

Summarised statement of profit and loss 31 March, 2023 31 Mareh, 2022 31 March 24021
Revenue 12,934.55 - -
Other income 78.42 3712 3335
Operating Expenses 7.785.7% - -
Employee benefit expenses 54379 227.44 17594
Finance cost 7460.11 54622 5132
Depreciation and amortisation 374182 22262 149.10
Other expenses 569.0% 148.80 139.99
Profit before tax {7,028.24) {1,207.96) (954.90)
Deferred tax liability (3,795.48) 094 (6,095.60)
Profit/Loss for the year {10,823.72) {1,207.02) (7,049.90)
Other comprensive income - - .
Total comprehensive income {10,823.72) {1.207.02) (7.049,90)
Adjustment of Earlier Year CCPS Interest - 54.00 -
Adjosted Total comprehensive income {10,823,72) {1,153,62) (7,042.90}
Group's share of total comprehensive income for the year {3.607.90) (384.34) (2,349.73}
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$ ised Bal Sheet

31 Mareh, 2023

31 Mareh, 2022

31 March 2021

Current asset
Total financials assets
Other current assets
Current tax assel
Total Non-current asset
Current liabilities
Torat financial liabilities
Other labilities
Provisions
Incoms 1ax lishitities
Eguity
Proportion of the group's ownership interest
Carrying amount of the group’s interest
Carrying amount

913.63

2434
32952
914.8%

(43843)
32.02)
(14.95)

(120.00)

1,376,990

50%
688 49
68849

453.96

1334
205.61
911.38

(314.21)
(26.06)
(12.30)

{203.51)

1,028.21
50%

514.11

514.11

1,047.87
2.49
19499
16182

{36021}
03.39)
(9.60)
{212.24)
81173
50%
40587
40587

Reconciliation to carrying amounts

31 March. 2023

31 March, 2022

31 March 2021

Opening carrying value
Profi for the year

Other comprehensive income
Closing carrying amount

5id 11
174.39

G88.49

405.87
108.24

5411

24864
15722

405.87

Summarised statement of profit and boss

31 March, 2023

31 March, 2022

31 March 2021

Revenue 427802 2.738.56 3445.7%
Other income 8029 5920 12,15
Employee benefit expenses 130.83 1i9.09 11747
Finance costs 830 6.80 -

Depreciation and amaortisation 249 204 215
Other expenses 3,748.63 2,3569] 291333
Profit before tax 468.06 312,92 424.92
Tax expenses 11928 96.44 110.48
Profit/Loss for the year 345.78 216.48 3444
Other comprensive income - u

Total comprehensive income 348.78 2E6.48 314,44
Group's share of total comprehensive income for the year 174.39 108 24 i57.22

C

-

High Retura Rock Mining LLP

Summarised Bafance Sheet

31 March, 2023

31 March, 2022

31 March 2021

Non current asscts 194.65 207.94 253.90
Total current assets 10353 93.30 78.70
Total liabilities {516) {7.65) {147.03)
Partners current account (243.01) (244.09) (135.56)
Capital 50.00 50.0¢ 50.00
Proportion of the group's ownership interest 5085 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the group's interest 2500 2500 25.00
Share of {oss {31.74) (21.83) (13.38)
Carrying amount of the group's interest - Ry 1462
Carrying amount - 3.17 11.62

Reconciliation to carrying amounts

3 March, 2023

3t March, 2022

31 Mareh 2021

Opening carrying value
Profit for the year*
Other comprehensive income

Closing carrying amount

3.17 11.62 19.46
G617 (8.45) (7.84)
- 3417 1162

* Restricted to the carrying value of the investment

Summarised statement of profit and loss

31 March, 2023

31 March, 2022

31 March 2021

Revenue - 42.06 £8 56
Other income - - .02
Increase/(Decrease) in Stocks 010 . -
Employee benefit expenses - 480 480
Finance cost 0.01 530 21.05
Depreciation and amortisation 3435 45.96 5611
Other expenses 102 2584 2139
Profit before tax (4E.28) {16.90) {15.68)
Prior Period Adjustment 2505

Tax expenses (0.40)

Profit/Loss for the year {19.83) {16,90) (15.68)
Other comprensive income “ -
‘T'otal comprehensive income (19.83} {16.90} {15.68)
Group's share of total comprehensive income for the vear (991} {8.45) (784)
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Additional Regulatory Information

Details of Berami Property held

The Group does not have any Benam: property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benam property.
Details of Loans and advances

Refer note no 40 for Loans and advances granted to promoters, directers, key managerial personnel {KMPs} and the related parties which are repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

Type of borrower Amount of lonw or adyance in the nature of loan Percentage to the total loans and advances in the
outstanding nature of loans

Prometers NA NA

Directors NA NA

KMPs NA NA

Related Parties NA NA

Wilful Defaulter
The Group has niot been declared as a wilful Defaulter by any Financial Institution or bank as at the date of Balanee Sheet

Relationship with Struck off Companies

Name of struck off Company Natuere of Balance Balance Relation with
transaction with [outstanding as atioutstanding as at Jstruck off
struck off 31st March, 31st March, company, if any
company 2022 2021 1o be disclosed

Not Applicabie Not Applicable  [Not Applicable  [Not Applicable  {Not Applicable

Registeation of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Contpanies (ROC)
The Group has no pending charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the ROC beyond the Statutory period
Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Group has complied with the provision of the number of layers prescribed under ¢lause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies
{Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
There are no Schemes of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Compantes Act, 2013.

Discrepancy in utilization of borrowings
The Group has used the borrowings from banks and financ:al nstitutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date. There
are no diserepancy in utilisabon of borrowings.

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

1. The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s) or entity(ies}, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall-

a) directly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on

behalf of the Group {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

2. The Group has not received any fund from any persen{s} or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
tecorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shali:

a) directly or mdirectly lend or invest m other persons or entities identified 1n any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Pany (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, secunity or the ke on behalf of the ultimate benefigiaries

Undisclosed income

The Group has no transaction that 15 not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196) (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

Details of Crypte Curcency or Virtual Currency

The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Curzency
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50 Operating Segment

Description of segments and principal activities
The Group’s operating business predominantly relates to cargo handling services incidental to water transport and hence the Group has considered
“Cargo Handling and incidental services” as the single reportable segment.

51 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to conform current year’s presentation.

For Roy & Sengupta Associates For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants
FRN :p324171E

‘0. Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited

p Qrabiot asblogs

ant Kumar i:: iswal Prabal Mukherjee

Director Director
DIN : 00045322 DIN : 05259069

Ripley

-

Membership No. : 205836

UDIN :23205836BGTMVK4025
Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata

Dated : 25th September, 2023 Dated : 25th September, 2023 Dated : 25th September, 2023




Ripley & Company Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statementsfor the year ended 31 March 2023

Summary of significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the Consolidated financial
statements -

Corporate overview

Ripley & Company Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited(CIN-
U73100WB2000PTC091705)herein referred to as “the company” was incorporated on 19 April
2000. The registered office of the company is situated at 22, Lee Road, C Block, 1st Floor, Kolkata
700020.

The company is engaged in the business of providing cargo handling incidental to water transport.
Transportation by motor vehicles, inland water transport, trading and other business activities etc.

1. Significant accounting policies
1.1. Basis of preparation of Consolidated financial statements:

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act") read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards), Rules, 2016 and relevant amendment rules issued
thereafter.

The Consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25"
September, 2023.

¢ Functional and presentation eurrency

These Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest Rupees Lakhs, as per the
requirements of Schedule III of the Act, unless otherwise stated.

1.2. Basis of measurement

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following:

= certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair
value; and

« net defined benefit (asset)/ liability that are measured at fair value of plan assets less present value of
defined benefit obligations.

1.3. Use of judgements estimates and assumptions.

The preparation of the Consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenue, expenses, current assets, non-current assets, current liabilities, non-current liabilities, and
disclosure of the contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. Such estimates are on a
reasonable and prudent basis considering all available information, however, due to uncertainties
about these judgments, estimates and assumptions, actual results could differ from estimates.
Information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes.
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Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated financial statements is included in the
following notes:

e Note 43 — classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets
are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment is included in the following notes:

* Note 2, 3 — Useful life of depreciable assets — Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital work-in-
progress.

* Note 38 — Recognition of contingencies, key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of
outflow of resources,

» Note 36 — Recognition of tax expense including deferred tax.

1.4. Current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities

The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realised within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

e (Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it is:

e Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of products/services and the time between acquisition
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current / non - current classification of assets
and liability.
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1.5. Property, plant and equipment:
*Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss,
if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and other non-refundable taxes or leviesandany directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use.Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the purchase price. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of a qualifying
asset are capitalised as part of the cost.The company identifies and determines cost of each
component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the
total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset.
These components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are
depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

*Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

*Disposal

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net within other income/ expenses in the statement
of profit and loss.

*Depreciation

Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a year is proportionately charged. Depreciation is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss on written down value over the estimated useful lives as
per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, of each significant part of an item of property, plant and

equipment.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at regular intervals and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

1.6. Intangible assets:
*Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets are recognised when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the Company, it

is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the
Company and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets
acquired by the Company that have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated
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not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.
Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product
or process is technically and coumnercially [easible, [utuwie economic benefits ae probable and the
Company intends to complete development and to use or sell the asset.

*Subsequent measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates.

Amonrtisation

Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost.
Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit and loss over the estimated useful livesof intangible
assets from the date that they are available for use.

* Disposal

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

1.7. Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

1.8. Impairments of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or cash
generating unit (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair
value less costs of disposal or its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
considered.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer
exists, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not

o impairment loss had been recognised.
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1.9. Inventories:
Inventories comprising of traded items are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower,

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

1.10. Revenue recognition:

Sales are recognised when substantial control of the products has been transferred to the customer,
being when the products are delivered to the customer or its authorised representative and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products. Revenue from these
sales is recognised based on the price specified in the sales order, net of the estimated discounts,
rebates, returns and goods and service tax. A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as
this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.Sales revenues of products are disclosed at net of tax.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised over the period of time.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income:

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The ‘effective
interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futurecash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

Dividends are recognised in the statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is
established, and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company and that the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

1.11. Foreign currency transactions:

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transactions.
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss of the year.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are outstanding, as at the
reporting period are translated at the closing exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured in terms of
historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a
foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.
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1.12. Employee benefits:
« Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognized during the year.

* Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

Contributions to the provident fundwhich is defined contribution scheme, are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the contribution is
due. Contributions are made in accordance with the rules of the statute and are recognised as expenses
when employees render service entitling them to the contributions.

I the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds
the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due
for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The employees’ gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under
such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the
market yields on government securitics as at the reporting date, having maturity periods
approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
other comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the planned assets is reduced from the gross obligation under
the defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on net basis.

When the benefits of the plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefits
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises gains/ losses on settlement of a defined plan when
the settlement occurs.
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« Other long-term employee benefits

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method as determined
by actuarial valuation. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting
period that have terms approximating the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result
of experience adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting
period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

1.13. Income taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity
or in other comprehensive income (OCI).

+ Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and
generates taxable income. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally
enforceable right to set it off the recognised amounts and it is intended to realise the asset and settle
the Tiability on a net basis or simultaneously.

* Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

- Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) can
be utilised, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly

in equity.
1.14. Earnings per share (EPS):

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.
Diluted EPS adjust the figures used in the determination of basic EPS to consider

- The after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

- The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1.15. Provision and contingent liabilities / assets:

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
taxrate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the hability. When discounting is used,
theincrease in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost in the statement
ofprofit and loss.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

- a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation.

- present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

- a possible obligation arising from past events where the probability of outflow of resources is not
remote.

Contingent asset is not recognised in the Consolidated financial statemenis. A contingent assef is
disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date,




Ripley & Company Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statementsfor the year ended 31 March 2023

1.16. Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of not more than three months, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

1.17. Cash flow statement:

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net Profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, such as deferrals or accruals of past or future operating
cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts are
considered to be part of cash and cash equivalents.

1.18. Leases

At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the company assesses whether:

e the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly
and shouid be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically
distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified.

¢ the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset throughout the period of use; and

e the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has
the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset
is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is
predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset if either:

- the Company has the right to operate the asset; or
- the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will
be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.

Company as a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as
those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.




Ripley & Company Stevedoring & Handling Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statementsfor the year ended 31 March 2023

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

e fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date.
amounts expecied to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

e the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably cerfain to exercise,
lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an
extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset,or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless the payments to the lessor are structured
to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary
cost increases or another systematic basis is available. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
transfer from the company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded
as receivables at the company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in
respect of the lease.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The company has elected not Lo 1ecognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilitics for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets, The company recognises
the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

1.19. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
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- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of
an assct or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.A
fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

« Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

» Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

1.20. Financial instruments
1.20.1. Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts
such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and currency
options; and embedded derivatives in the host contract. All financial assets are recognised initially at
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in one of the three categories:
a) At amortised cost

b) At fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVTOCT")

¢) At fair value through profit or loss ('FVTPL”)

(a) Financial assets classified as measured at amartised cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:
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- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method, less impairment charge. Amortised cost is calculated by
considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance expense/ (income) in the statement of profit and
loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This
category generally applies to trade receivables, security and other deposits receivable by the
Company.

(b) Financial assets classified as measured at FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCIL.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which.are recognised in profit
and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCI is reclassified from equity to retained earnings. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

{¢) Financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOClare measured at fair value
throughprofit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that issubsequently measured at fair value
throughprofit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship isrecognised in profit or loss and
presented netin the statement of profit and loss within othergains/(losses) in the period in which it
arises. Interestincome from these financial assets is included inother income.

De-recognition of financial asset

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a fransaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Companyenters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with IndAS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk

exposure:

- Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,deposits
and bank balances.

- Trade receivables.
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The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initialrecognition.
If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.

1.20.2. Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
and incremental transaction cost,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premiwm on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial habilities
designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IndAS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition at the initial date of recognition if the
criteria in IndAS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognised in OCL These gains/ losses are not
subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the most relevant category to the Company. The Company generally classifies interest bearing
borrowings as financial liabilities carried at amortised cost. After initial recognition, these nstruments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process. :

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.
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De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the balance sheet when,
and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

1.21. Operating Segment

Identification of segments

The company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of
products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers
different products and serves different markets. Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

Inter-segment transfers

The company generally accounts for intersegment sales and transfers at cost plus appropriate margins.

Allocation of common costs

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each
segment to the total common costs.

Unallocated items

Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any
business segment.

Segment accounting policies

The company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for
preparing and presenting the Consolidated financial statements of the company as a whole.
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1.22. Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by
issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April
1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is
material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general-
purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant
impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

The amendments narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it no longer applies
to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and offsetting temporary
differences. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its
financial statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting
estimates and includes amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting
policies from changes in accounting estimates. The Company does not expect this amendment to have
any significant impact in its financial statements.
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